
 

 

 

PROPOSED AGENDA 

LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT FOUNDATION 

Board of Directors Meeting 

June 22, 2018 

 

DATE:         June 22, 2018  

TIME:          12:00 p.m. 

PLACE:       West Charleston Library 

        6301 W. Charleston Boulevard 

                    Las Vegas, NV 89146 

                    Library Conference Room      

 

I. Roll Call 

 

II. Public Comment  

 

Topics raised under this item must be limited to matters on today’s Agenda. Persons 

wishing to speak in public comment must sign in on the sign-in sheet before this item is 

addressed.  

 

The public comment period at Library Foundation board meetings shall be limited to a 

maximum of forty-five (45) minutes for both periods of public comment. Remarks by 

speakers during the public comment period shall be limited to three (3) minutes, each. A 

speaker may not transfer time to another speaker; although, the chair has the authority 

to grant additional time to a speaker. When more than fifteen (15) people wish to 

comment, the chair shall proportionately reduce the time allotted to the forty-five minute 

maximum.  

 

III. Board action to accept Proposed Agenda  

 

IV. Board action to accept Minutes from January 24, 2018 

 

V. Review Financial Reports and Report from Finance Committee 

 

VI. Adoption of FY 2018-2019 Foundation Budget 

 

VII. Election of Officers and Directors 

 

VIII. Update on Tom and Bonnie Lawyer Scholar Award Program 

 

IX. Update on KTNV VROOM Campaign for Library District 

 



 
Agenda – Board of Directors Meeting 
June 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

X. Announcements – Please calendar these events 

 

XI. Public Comment 

 

Topics raised under this item cannot be acted upon until the notice provisions of the 

open meeting law have been met. Persons wishing to speak in public comment must 

sign in on the sign-in sheet before this item is addressed.   

 

XII. Adjournment 

NOTE: AT ANY TIME, ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF 

ORDER, COMBINED WITH ONE OR MORE OTHER ITEMS ON THE AGENDA OR 

REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA, EITHER AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIR OR 

BY VOTE OF THE BOARD.  

NOTE: REASONABLE EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO ASSIST AND ACCOMMODATE 

PERSONS WITH PHYSICAL DISABILITIES DESIRING TO ATTEND THE MEETING. 

PLEASE CALL SHERRY WALKER AT (702) 507-6183 SO THAT ARRANGEMENTS 

FOR ATTENDANCE MAY BE MADE.  

NOTE: PLEASE CONTACT SHERRY WALKER AT (702) 507-6183 OR 

walkers@lvccld.org TO REQUEST THE SUPPORTING MATERIAL FOR THIS 

MEETING. SUPPORTING MATERIAL WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE AT THE MEETING 

LOCATION ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING AFTER 3:00 P.M. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, written notice of the emergency meeting of the Las Vegas-

Clark County Library District Foundation Board of Directors was given on Wednesday, 

July 19, 2017, including in the notice the time, place, location and agenda of the 

meeting: 

A. By delivering a copy of the notice to each Foundation Board Member;  

 

B. By posting a copy of the notice at the principal office of the Foundation, or if there is no 

principal office, at the building in which the meeting is to be held, and at least three other 

separate, prominent places within the jurisdiction of the Foundation, to wit: 

 

1. Clark County Library 

1401 E. Flamingo Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89119  

 

2. Las Vegas Library 

833 Las Vegas Boulevard 

North Las Vegas, NV 89101 

 

3. West Charleston Library 

6301 W. Charleston Boulevard 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

 

 



 
Agenda – Board of Directors Meeting 
June 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 

 

4. Windmill Library 

7060 W. Windmill Lane 

Las Vegas, NV 89113  

 

5. Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Foundation website 

www.lvccldfoundation.org 

 

6. Nevada Public Notice Website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 

 

 

C. By mailing a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has requested notice of the 

meetings of the Las Vegas-Clark County Library District Foundation Board of Directors 

in the same manner in which notice is requested to be mailed to a member of the Library 

Board of Directors. 

http://www.lvccldfoundation.org/
https://notice.nv.gov/


Minutes 

LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT FOUNDATION 

Board of Directors Meeting 

January 24, 2018 

 

The Board of Directors of the Las Vegas Clark County Library District Foundation met at the 

Clark County Library,1401 E. Flamingo, Las Vegas, NV 89119 

 

Board Members in  Edward Koijane, President 

Attendance   Keiba Crear, Secretary/Treasurer 

    Shannon Bilbray-Axelrod, Director 

    Chaka Crome, Director 

Jane Mac, Director 

Chris Way, Director 

Dr. Ronald Heezen, Ex-Officio Director 

  

 

Board Members Absent: Kelly Benavidez, Director  

    Tamar Hoapili, Director 

Thomas Lawyer, Director 

Christina Mangino, Director 

John Pourciau, Director 

Elaine Sanchez, Director 

 

 

     

  

    

Roll Call 

(Item I) 

 

President Koijane called the meeting to order at 12 p.m. All 

members listed above represent a quorum.  

Public Comment 

(Item II) 

 

None 

Board Action to 

accept Proposed 

Agenda 

(Item III) 

 

President Koijane moved to approve the proposed agenda. There 

was no opposition and the motion carried. 

 

Board Action to 

accept Minutes from 

October 23, 2017 and 

December 14, 2017 

(Item IV) 

 

President Koijane asked if there were any comments or edits to the 

minutes from October 23, 2017 or December 14, 2017. All replied 

no. President Koijane made a motion to approve the minutes from 

October 23, 2017 and December 14, 2017. There was no opposition 

and the motion carried.  



 
Minutes – Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2018 
Page 2 
 

Discussion and Board 

Review of Financial 

Reports 

(Item V) 

 

Ms. Milam noted that the financial reports included in the board 

packet reflect some changes and additions suggested by the Finance 

Committee at their first meeting. 

 

Ms. Milam reviewed the Foundation revenues and expenditures as of 

November 30, 2017, including several grants that were awarded to 

the Foundation. Ms. Milam added that in December the Foundation 

received a $2,000 gift from the Scripps Howard Foundation to 

support the Raising Las Vegas initiative, thanks to Director Chris 

Way. Director Way added that literacy is the main funding focus of 

the Scripps Howard Foundation due to its roots in newspapers.  

 

Ms. Milam asked Director Mac to report on the activities of the 

Finance Committee. Director Mac stated that the committee spoke 

about selecting an auditor (which has been completed), putting 

some policies and procedures in place for circulating the 990 tax 

forms to the board before they are filed, and the creation of some 

investment policies. Ms. Milam added that the committee also 

discussed changing the format of reporting Foundation finances to 

the board. The Foundation is still in the process of changing its 

accounting system from QuickBooks to that of the District. Once that 

transition is complete, the financial reports will include a budget-to-

actual comparison.  

 

Ms. Milam stated that she would send the Conflict of Interest policy 

to each board member, and please read it and return the signature 

page for the corporate records.  

 

President Koijane asked which firm was chosen to perform the 

Foundation audit. Ms. Milam replied the Foundation as well as both 

QALICB organizations would be using Percy Bowler Taylor & Kearn, 

which is the firm that is used by the Library District.  

 

Ms. Milam reviewed the Foundation’s transfer of funds to the District 

and added that a board vote is no longer required to approve the 

transfer since the expenditures have been accounted for in the 

ratified budget. However, the expenses will continue be included in 

the board packet for board review. 

 

Ms. Milam stated that the Best Buy Teen Tech Center opening was a 

great success, with participation from a large amount of Best Buy 

employees and several notable speakers, including the CEO of Best 

Buy. 

 

Ms. Milam reviewed the balance sheet, which had been amended per 

the Finance Committee to show the $11 million that passed through 

the Foundation for the New Markets Tax Credit deal.  

 

Ms. Milam continued that Anita Lai, the District’s senior accountant, 

attended the Finance Committee meeting and has suggested that 

there be additional internal controls on the Foundation credit card 

account. The board agreed that a quarterly review of the charges by 

the Finance Committee would be acceptable.  



 
Minutes – Board of Directors Meeting 
January 24, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 

 

Board review of Cox 

Heart of Vegas 

segment on LVCCLD 

and LVCCLD 

Foundation 

(Item VI) 

 

Ms. Milam explained that due to the efforts of Director Hoapili, a six 

minute video featuring the Library District and Foundation will be 

aired on the Cox Heart of Vegas television segments during the 

months of January through March. Ms. Milam played the video for 

the board members. All board members agreed that the video was a 

great marketing segment and they would like to share it with their 

business contacts and colleagues.  

 

Board Tour of Best 

Buy Teen Tech Center 

and Teen Lounge at 

Clark County Library 

(Item VII) 

 

 

Ms. Milam gave the board members a tour of the Best Buy Teen 

Tech Center.  

Announcements 

(Item VIII) 

 

 

President Koijane announced that the next meeting of the Board of 

Directors will be held on March 19th, 2018, the location to be 

announced at a later date. 

Public Comment  

(Item IX) 

None 

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 12:55 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Keiba Crear, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 



                               Item V.  Financial Reports 6-22-18 

1  

 

Item V:   LVCCLD Foundation Financial Report 

Status of Foundation Revenues and Expenditures FY 17-18 

July 1, 2017 – May 31, 2018 

The Library Foundation fund balance increased to $18,665,879.87, with the closing of the East Las Vegas New 
Markets Tax Credit project in July, 2017, and the Mesquite New Markets Tax Credits project in December, 2017.   
Of this, $11,335,600 is a pass-through grant from the District for the East Las Vegas project, and $6,646,000 is a 
pass-through grant from the District for the Mesquite project.   

In addition to those massive revenue receipts and transfers, other significant grant and gifts were received: 

 $141,500 for Mesquite from the estate of Donald and Edith White  

 $3,630 for Kenneth Kingsbury for a new 3D Printer at the Best Buy Teen Tech Center 

 $1,500 from Scientific Games for Teen Tech Art Studios 

 $2,000 from the Scripps Howard Foundation for Raising Las Vegas 

 $30,000 grant for personnel support from Best Buy for the Teen Tech Center  

 $2,000 from Kinder Morgan Foundation for Homework Help 

 $3,500 from the David L. Simon Foundation for Raising Las Vegas 

 $10,000 from the Nevada Energy Foundation for the Best Buy Teen Tech Center. 

As of the end of May, 2018, the balance sheet shows a total of $18,806,718 in revenues, with $14,810 in 
unrestricted gifts from individuals and corporations; $320,500 in restricted gifts from foundations and $153,102 
in restricted gifts from individuals and corporations.  Restricted revenues from used book sales totaling 
$260,214; and $194 in interest (from the one day receipt and transfer of $11,335,600). 

Total expenditures for the same period were $527,875, of which $6,421 supported Foundation operations; 
$367,888 went to restricted project expenses; and $153,566 was transferred to the Library District from 
restricted book sales revenues for Library District and Library Foundation program support, per the terms of the 
Library Foundation-Library District Agreement. 

Foundation Finance and Audit Committee 

The Foundation Finance Committee, chaired by Foundation Secretary/Treasurer Keiba Crear, met briefly on 
June 18, 2018 to review the draft budget, get updates on the District transfer of the $3.1 million Widmeyer 
estate gift to the Foundation, and review draft investment policies for the Foundation.  The Committee will 
report to the board at this meeting.  Danielle Milam informed the Committee that the transfer of Foundation 
books would be delayed due to difficulties with the District’s adoption of the NAV accounting system.  For now, 
the Foundation will continue to use Quickbooks.   Because this committee is now taking on the task of 
developing an investment policy for the Library Foundation, it will hereafter be referred to as the Finance, Audit 
and Investment Committee. 



                               Item V.  Financial Reports 6-22-18 

2  

 

Foundation Transfers to the District  

The Foundation made two transfers to the District in the months of April and June, per the terms of the 
Foundation-District Agreement of 2009. 

 

 

 

 

 



                               Item V.  Financial Reports 6-22-18 

3  

 

A third transfer to the District was made by wire on June 14th, for a total of $76,297.74, related to interest 
income from Capital One for the East Las Vegas New Markets Tax Credits project in the amount of $48,806.04; 
and from JP Morgan Chase for the Mesquite NMTC project in two payments totaling $27,491.70, per the terms 
of the agreements on those transactions. 

 

In-kind Corporate Contributions 

Watch KNTV Channel 13!  In addition to a grant of $2,000 from the Scripps Howard Foundation for Raising Las 
Vegas, Channel 13 has created and is now airing a community spot about the parenting app, VROOM.  With 
additional funding from the David L. Simon Foundation, the Library Foundation has printed VROOM fliers and 
information cards that are available at every public library branch this summer.  The VROOM spot will continue 
to be aired throughout the year.  Special thanks goes to Foundation Board Director and General Manager of 
KNTV Channel 13, Chris Way, for mobilizing his team to highlight the critical role of libraries in early childhood 
and the power of the parenting app, VROOM.  Footage from the Foundation’s Raising Las Vegas project was 
used to create the ad. 

 

 

 























                                                                                         Item VI: Adoption of FY 2018-2019 Budget  6-22-18 

 

ITEM VI: Adoption of FY 2018-2019 Foundation Budget 

Staff proposes the FY 2018-2019 Foundation Budget as follows, based on 1) historical operations, 2) the present 

agreement between the Library District and Library Foundation which absorbs some expenses, such as audit and 

bookstore employees, that would otherwise come out of the Foundation’s Operating Budget and 3) staff for the 

Foundation are paid for by the Library District (Danielle Milam, Sherry Walker, and Leslie Valdes). 

 

 

 

 

 

 










